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1804 Post Road East Otisville FCI
Westport, Connecticut 06880-5683 2 Mile Drive
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Lee Davis, Esq.
NYS Department of Health
ESP-Corning Tower-Room 2438

Albany, New York 12237

RE: In the Matter of Gary Leeds, M.D,

Dear Parties:

Enclosed please find the Determination and Order (No. 15-290) of the Hearing
Committee in the above referenced matter. This Determination and Order shall be deemed
effective upon the receipt or seven (7) days after mailing by certified mail as per the provisions of
§230, subdivision 10, paragraph (h) of the New York State Public Health Law.

Five days after receipt of this Order, you will be required to deliver to the Board of
Professional Medical Conduct your license to practice medicine together with the registration
certificate. Delivery shall be by either certified mail or in person to:

Office of Professional Medical Conduct
New York State Department of Health
Office of Professional Medical Conduct
Riverview Center

150 Broadway - Suite 355

Albany, New York 12204

If your license or registration certificate s lost, misptaced or its whereabouts is otherwise
unknown, you shall submit an affidavit to that effect. If subsequently you locate the requested

items, they must then be delivered to the Office of Professional Medical Conduct in the manner
noted above.
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As prascribed by the New York State Public Health Law §230, subdivision 10, paragraph
(i), (McKinney Supp. 2015) and §230-c subdivisions 1 through 5, (McKinney Supp. 2015), “the
determination of a committee on professional medical conduct may be reviewed by the
Administrative Review Board for professional medical conduct.” Either the licensee or the
Department may seek a review of a committee determination.

Request for review of the Committee's determination by the Administrative Review Board
stays penalties other than suspension or revocation until final determination by that Board.
Summary orders are not stayed by Administrative Review Board reviews.

All notices of review must be served, by certified mail, upon the Administrative Review

Board and the adverse party within fourteen (14) days of service and receipt of the enclosed
Determination and Order,

The notice of review served on the Administrative Review Board should be forwarded to:

James F. Horan, Esq., Chief Administrative Law Judge
New York State Department of Health

Bureau of Adjudication

Riverview Center

150 Broadway — Suite 510

Aibany, New York 12204

The parties shall have 30 days from the notice of appeal in which to file their briefs to the
Administrative Review Board. $Six coples of all papers must also be sent to the attention of Mr.
Horan at the above address and one copy to the other party. The stipulated record in this matter
shall consist of the official hearing transcript(s) and all documents in evidence.

Parties will be notified by mail of the Administrative Review Board's Determination and

Order.
atnas F. Horan
ChiefAdministrative Law Judge
Buregu of Adjudication
JFH:cah

Enclosure



STATE OF NEW YORK : DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT

(TN
IN THE MATTER
RMINA
OF DETERMINATION
GARY LEEDS, M.D,, AND
Respondent SRR

BPMC #15-290
A hearing was held on November 18, 2015, at the offices of the New York State Department

of Health (“Department”). Pursuant to Section 230(10)(e) of the Public Health Law, Steven 1.
Sherman, D.O., M.S., Chairperson, Elisa J. Wu, M.D., and David F. Irvine, DHSc, P.A., duly
designated members of the State Board for Professional Medical Conduct, served as the Hearing
Committee in this matter. Dawn MacKillop-Soller, Esq., Administrative Law Judge, served as the
Administrative Officer. The Respondent was represented by Andrew B. Bowman, Esq. The
Department appeared by Richard Zahnleuter, Esq., Acting General Counsel, by Lee Davis, Esq., of
counsel. The brackets refer to exhibits [“Ex.”] that were accepted into evidence. A Commissioner’s
Order and Notice of Referral Proceeding and Statement of Charges dated August 31, 2015, were
served upon Gary Leeds, M.D. (“Respondent”).! Although represented by counsel at the hearing,

Respondent was not present. After consideration of the entire record, the Hearing Committee issues

| Copies of a Commissioner’s Order and the Notice of Referral Proceeding and the Statement of Charges are attached to

this Determination and Order as Appendix I and were personally served on Respondent on September 24, 2015, at
Otisville FCI, located at 2 Mile Drive, Otisville, New York. [Ex. 2]
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this Determination and Order, finding that a five year suspension of Respondent’s medical license

with probation and conditions is appropriate.

BACKGROUND

This case began with an Order by the Commissioner of Health, Howard A. Zucker, M.D,,
J.D., summarily suspending the Respondent’s medical license pursuant to Public Health Law
(“PHL”) § 230(12)(b). The Department brought the case pursuant to PHL § 230(10)(p), which
provides for a hearing on circumscribed issues when a licensee is charged solely with a violation of
Education Law § 6530(9). In such cases, a licensee is charged with misconduct based upon a prior
criminal conviction in New York State or another jurisdiction, or upon a prior administrative
adjudication regarding conduct that would amount to professional misconduct, if committed in New
York. The Respondent is charged here with professional misconduct pursuant to Education Law §
6530(9)(a)(ii) by having been convicted of committing an act constituting a crime under federal law,
in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952(a)(3) and 18 U.S.C. § 2.
FINDINGS OF FACT
The following Findings of Fact were made after a review of the entire record in this matter:
1. Gary Leeds, M.D., the Respondent, was authorized to practice medicine in New York
on December 11, 1981, by the issuance of license number 148835 by the New York State Education
Department. [Ex. 3]
2. On or about November 21, 2013, in the United States District Court, District of New
Jersey, Respondent pled guilty to accepting bribes in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1952(a)(3) and 18
U.S.C. § 2, the Interstate Foreign Travel or Transportation in Aid of Racketeering statute. The

Respondent was sentenced on June 2, 2015, to 20 months of incarceration, followed by a one-year
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period of supervised release, forfeiture of $108,000, a $15,000 fine, and a $100.00 special assessment.
[Ex. 1,4]
VOT RING CO E
FIRST SPECIFICATION
Respondent violated New York Education Law Section 6530(9)(a)(ii) by having been
convicted of committing an act constituting a crime under federal law.
VOTE: Sustained (3-0)
HEARING CO DETE ATION
In the United States District Court of New Jersey, the Respondent pled guilty to accepting
bribes as part of an interstate racketeering scheme. [Ex. 1] This was & federal crime. Additionally,
in his Answer dated November 16, 2015, Respondent admitted that he was “convicted by his plea
of guilty of violating 18 U.S.C. §1953(a)(3) and § 2". [Ex. A] The specification of misconduct in
the Statement of Charges of this proceeding is sustained.

From September 2010 through April 2013, Respondent engaged in a fraudulent scheme of
referring his patients’ blood specimens to Biodiagnostic Laboratory Services, LLC, a clinical
laboratory, in exchange for large sums of money. [Ex. 4] This conduct represented Respondent’s
use of his medical license to participate in a scam involving his own patients. It also suggested
Respondent’s placement of his financial interests, in participating in an arrangement where he
accepted money for the referral of his patients’ blood samples, above the sound care of his patients.
In determining a penalty, the Committee considered Respondent’s compliance in paying the fine and
forfeiture amounts imposed pursuant to the criminal sentence and Respondent’s long-standing
commitment to rendering treatment to lower income families in Manhattan. His written statement

in which he expressed remorse for his wrongful conduct was also considered. [Ex.A,B] In his
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statement, Respondent explained how he is a “family practitioner” and “rooted in the fact that patient
relationships, dealing with families, advocating for patients has been, (and) always will be my top
priority.” [Ex. A] (Emphasis added).

The Committee deterrined that Respondent should be suspended for a period of five years, the
first two of which should be an actual suspension and the last three of which should be stayed. In
addition, Respondent is subject to five years of probation with conditions, including, but not limited
to completion of appropriate Continuing Medical Education (*CME") coursework in billing
practices and a practice monitor, to begin at the termination of the actual suspension. A copy of the

Terms of Probation are attached to this Determination and Order as Appendix II.
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ORDER
IT ]S HEREBY ORDERED THAT:

1, The f.actﬁal allegations and specification contained in the Statement of Charges
(Appendix 1) are SUSTAINED; and

2. Respondent is subject to a-five year suspension. The first two years of suspension willbe

an actual suspension. The last three years of suspension will be stayed. Five years of probation will
begin at the termination of the period of actual suspension. The Temns of Probation (Appendix I
include, but are not limited to, CME coursework in appropriate billing practices and practice only
with a practice monitor during the five years of prqhation; and

3. Respondent shal] comply with all the Terms of Probation attached to this Determination

apd Order; and

4. This Order shall be effective upon service on the Respondent in accordance with the

requirements of Public Health Law Section 230(10)(h).

DATED: Albany, New York

Desembond, 2015

teven 1. Sherman, D.O., M.S., Chairperson

David F. Irvine, DHS¢, P.A. and
Elisa J, Wu, M.D.

TO: Andrew Bowman, Esq.
1804 Post Road East
Westport, CT 06380-5683

Gary Leeds, M.D.
Otisville FCI
2 Mile Drive
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Otisville, NY 10963

Lee Davis, Esq.

Attorney for Department

New York State Department of Health
Albany, New York 12237
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EXHIBIT

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH i 1
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT

IN THE MATTER COMMISSIONER'S
OF ORDER OF
GARY LEEDS, M.D. SUMMARY
ACTION

TO: GaryLeeds, M.O. Gary Leeds, M.D.
Family Medical Group
22 West 15" Street
New York, NY 10011

The undersigned, Howard A, Zucker, M.D., J.D., Commissioner of Health, pursuant
to N.Y. Public Health Law §230, upon the recommendation of a Committee on
Professional Medical Conduct of the State Board for Professional Medical Conduct, has
determined that Gary Leeds, M.D. (henceforth “Respondent”), has pleaded or been found
guilty or convicted of committing an act constituting a felony under New York State law,
federal law, or the law of another jurisdiction which, if committed within this state, would
have constituted a felony under New York State law, as is more fully set forth in the

Statement of Charges attached to the Notice of Referral Proceeding or Notice of Hearing
and made a part hereof,

It is therefore:
ORDERED, pursuant to N.Y. Public Health Law §230(12)(b), that effective
immediately, Respondent shall not practice medicine in the State of New York, or practice

n any setting under ity of Res 's New York li .
n dicine in violation of { rder
shall constitute Profession ndu hin the
meaning of N.Y. Educ, Law §8530(28) and may
const d medical practice lon
defined by N.Y. Educ. Law §6512.

This Order shall remain in effect until the final conclusion of a hearing which shall

commence within ninety days of the service of this order and shall end within ninety days
thereafter. The hearing will be held pursuant to the provisions of N.Y. Pub. Health Law

O




§230, and N.Y. State Admin. Proc. Act §§301-307 and 401, The hearing will be conducted
before a committee on professional conduct of the State Board for Professional Medical
Conduct on a date and at a location to be set forth in a written Notice of Hearing or Notice
of Referral Proceeding provided to the Respondent contemporaneously with this Order.

THESE PROCEEDINGS MAY RESULT IN A
DETERMINATION THAT YOUR LICENSE TO PRACTICE
MEDICINE IN NEW YORK STATE BE REVOKED OR
SUSPENDED, AND/OR THAT YOU BE FINED OR SUBJECT
TO OTHER SANCTIONS SET FORTH IN NEW YORK PUBLIC
HEALTH LAW §230-a. YOU ARE URGED TO OBTAIN AN
ATTORNEY TO REPRESENT YOU IN THIS MATTER.

DATED: Albany, New York
3 P«u%uﬂ , 2015

Howard A. Zucker] M.D., J.D.
Commissioner of Health
New York State Department of Health

Inquiries should be directed to:

Lee A. Davis

Associate Counsel

Bureau of Professional Medical Conduct
Corning Tower, Room 2512

Empire State Plaza

Albany, New York 12237

(518) 4734283




NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT

IN THE MATTER NOTICE OF
OF REFERRAL
GARY LEEDS, M.D. PROCEEDING
TO: Gary Leeds, M.D. Gary Leeds, M.D.
Family Medical Group
22 West 15" Street

New York, NY 10011
PLEASE TAKE NOTICE THAT:

An adjudicatory proceeding will be held pursuant to the provisions of N.Y, Pub. Health
Law §230(10)(p) and N.Y. State Admin. Proc. Act §§301-307 and 401, The proceeding will be
conducted before a committes on professional conduct of the Stale Board for Professional
Medical Conduct (Committee) on November 18%, 2015, at 10:30 a.m., at the offices of the New

York State Department of Health, Riverview Center, 150 Broadway, Suite 510, Menands
(Albany), NY 12204-2719."

At the proceeding, evidence will be recelved concerning the allegations set forth in the
Statement of Charges, which is attached. A stenographic record of the proceeding will be made
and the witnesses at the proceeding will be sworn and examined.

You may appear in person at the preceeding and may be represented by counsel who
shall be an attorney admitted to practice in New York state, You may produce evidence or
sworn testimony on your behalf, Such evidence or sworn testimony shall be strictly iimited to
evidence and testimony relating to the nature and severity of the penalty to be imposed upon
the licensee. Where the charges are based on the conviction of state law crimes in other
|urisdictions, evidence may be offered which would show that the conviction wouild not be a
crime in New York State. The Committee also may limit the number of witnesses whose
testimony will be received, as well as the length of time any witness will be permitted to testify.

If you intend to present sworn lestimony, the number of witnesses and an estimate of the
time necessary for their direct examination must be submitted to the New York State

! For GPS purposes, enter “Menands”, not “Albany”,
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Department of Health, Division of Legal Affairs, Bureau of Adjudication, Riverview Center, 150
Broadway - Suite 510, Albany, NY 12204-2718, ATTENTION: HON. JAMES HORAN,
DIRECTOR, BUREAU OF ADJUDICATION (Telephone: (518-402-0748), (henceforth "Bureau
of Adjudication”) as well as the Department of Health attorney indicated below, no later than
twenty days prior to the scheduled date of the Referral Proceeding, as indicated above.

Pursuant to the provisions of N.Y. Pub. Heaith Law §230(1 0)(p), you shall file a wriiten
answer to each of the charges and allegations in the Statement of Charges not later than ten
days prior to the date of the hearing. Any charge or allegation not so answered shall be deemed
admitted. You may wish to seek the advice of counsel prior to filing such answer, The answer
shall be filed with the Bureau of Adjudication, at the address indicated above, and a copy shall
be forwarded to the attomey for the Department of Health whose name appears below. You
may file a wrilten brief and affidavits with the Committee. Six copies of all papers you submit
must be filed with the Bureau of Adjudication at the address indicated above, no later than
fourteen days prior to the scheduled date of the Referral Proceeding, and a copy of all papers
must be served on the same date on the Department of Health attorney indicated below.
Pursuant to §301(5) of the State Administrative Procedure Act, the Department, upon
reasonable notice, will provide at no charge a qualified interpreter of the deaf to interpret the
proceedings to, and the tesiimony of, any deaf person. Pursuant to the terms of N.Y, State
Admin. Proc. Act §401 and 10 N.Y.C.R.R. §51.8(b), the Petitioner hereby demands disclosure
of the evidence that the Respondent Intends to introduce at the hearing, including the names of

witnesses,  list of and copies of documentary evidence and a description of physical or other
evidence which cannot be pholocopied.

YOU ARE HEREBY ADVISED THAT THE ATTACHED CHARGES WILL BE MADE PUBLIC
FIVE BUSINESS DAYS AFTER THEY ARE SERVED.
Department attorney: Initial here

The proceeding may be held whether or not you appear. Please note thal requests for
adjoumnments must be made in writing to the Bureau of Adjudication, at the address indicated
above, with a copy of the request to the atiomey for the Depariment of Health, whose name
appears below, at least five days prior to the scheduled date of the proceeding. Adjournment
requests are not routinely granted. Claims of court engagement will require detailed affidavits of
actual engagement. Claims of lliness will require medical documentation. Failure to obtain an
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attorney within a reasonable period of time prior lo the proceeding will not be grounds for an

adjournment.

The Commitiee will make a written report of its findings, conclusions as to guilt, and a
determination. Such determination may be reviewed by the administrative review board for
professional medical conduct.

THESE PROCEEDINGS MAY RESULT IN A
DETERMINATION THAT YOUR LICENSE TO PRACTICE
MEDICINE IN NEW YORK STATE BE REVOKED OR
SUSPENDED, AND/OR THAT YOU BE FINED OR
SUBJECT TO OTHER SANCTIONS SET OUT IN NEW
YORK PUBLIC HEALTH LAW §§230-a. YOU ARE URGED
TO OBTAIN AN ATTORNEY TO REPRESENT YOU IN
THIS MATTER.

DATED: Albany, New York
August 3 / 2015
ICHAEL A. HISER
Deputy Counsel
Bureau of Professional Medical Conduct
Inquiries should be addressed to:
Lee A, Davis

Associate Counsel

{3ureau of Professional Medical Conduct
Corning Tower — Room 2512

Empire State Plaza

Albany, NY 12237

(518) 473-4282




NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
STATE BOARD FOR PROFESSIONAL MEDICAL CONDUCT

IN THE MATTER STATEMENT
OF OF
CHARGES
GARY LEEDS, M.D.

Gary Leeds, M.D,, the Respondent, was authorized to practice medicine in New

York State on December 11, 1881 by the issuance of license number 148835 by the New
York State Education Department.

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

A. On or about June 2, 2015 in the United States District Court, District of New Jersey,
Respondent was convicted of accepting bribes in violation of 18 U.S.C. §1952 (a)(3) and
18 U.S.C. §2, the Interstate and Foreign Travel or Transportation In Ald of Racketeering
statute, a felony. Respondent was sentenced to twenty (20) months incarceration,

followed by a one year period of supervised release, forfeiture of $108,000.00 and a
$15,000.00 fine.

SPECIFICATION OF MISCONDUCT
Respondent violated Education Law § 6530 (8)(a)(il) by having been convicted of an
act constituting a crime under federal law, in that Petitioner charges:

1. The facts in Paragraph A.

DATE: August¥/2015
Albany, New York

Michae! A. Hiser
Deputy Counsel
Bureau of Professional Medical Conduct

1
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1.

3.

L

F PR N

Respondent’s conduct shall conform to moral and professional standards of conduct and to governing
law. Any act of professional misconduct by Respondent as defined by New York Education Law §§
6530 or 6531 shall constitute a violation of probation and may subject Respondent to an action
pursuant to New York Public Health Law § 230 (10) or (19), or both.
Respondent shall remain in continuous compliance with all requirements of New York Education
Law § 6502, including but not limited to the requirements that a licensee shall register and continue to
be registered with the New York State Education Department (except during periods of actual
suspension) and that a licensee shall pay all registration fees. Respondent shall not exercise the
option provided in New York Education Law § 6502(4) to avoid registration and payment of fees.
Respondent shall provide to the Director, Office of Professional Medical Conduct (OPMC),
Riverview Center, Suite 355, 150 Broadway, Albany, New York, 12204, at least every six months
and as otherwise requested, or within thirty days of any change in the information, the following
information in writing:
a. a full description of the Respondent’s employment and practice;
b. all professional and residential addresses and telephone numbers within and outside of New
York State;
c. any and all information concermning investigations, arrests, charges, convictions or
disciplinary actions by any local, state, or federal agency; and
d. any and all information concerning investigations, terminations, or disciplinary matters by
any institution or facility.
Respondent shall provide to the Director, Office of Professional Medical Conduct (OPMC),
Riverview Center, Suite 355, 150 Broadway, Albany, New York, 12204, copies of all applications
relating to the practice of medicine, including but not limited to, privileges, insurance, and licensure,
in any jurisdiction, concurrent with their submission.
Respondent shall cooperate fully with, and will respond within two weeks to, OPMC requests to
provide written periodic verification of Respondent’s compliance with these terms of probation.
Upon the Director of OPMC's request, Respondent shall meet personally with a person designated by
the Director.
The probation period is for five years, which will be tolled whenever Respondent is not practicing as
a physician in New York. If the Respondent leaves practice in New York state, the Respondent shall
notify the Director of OPMC, in writing, of the date upon which Respondent leaves practice as a

physician. Respondent shall notify the Director of OPMC, in writing, 90 days prior to his return to
practice as a physician in New York state.
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10.

11,

12.

13.

Respondent shall fulfill all probation terms and such additional requirements as the Director may
impose as reasonably relate to the matters set forth in the Determination and Order or as are necessary
to protect the public health. These conditions include, but are not limited to, Respondent’s
completion of appropriate CME courses in billing and a practice monitor.

The Director of OPMC, or his/her designee, may review Respondent’s professional performance.

This review may include, but shall not be limited to:

a. A review of office records, billing records, films, patient records, hospital charts, and/or
electronic records;

b. Interviews with or periodic visits with Respondent and/or staff at practice locations or at
OPMC offices;

c. A review of any determinations, decisions, or investigations by any state medical board,
Throughout the period of probation, Respondent shall practice as a physician only when a practice
monitor is present in his office. The practice monitor shall be on-site during office hours, unless
determined otherwise by the Director of OPMC. The practice monitor shail be proposed by the

Respondent and subject to the written approval of the Director of OPMC. The practice monitor shall

not be a family member or personal friend, or be in a professional relationship, which could pose a
conflict with supervision responsibilities.

Respondent shall ensure that the practice monitor has a copy of this Determination and Order and is
farniliar with these terms of probation, The practice monitor must be willing to report to OPMC
information concerning the Respondent’s practice and conduct. Respondent shall ensure that the
practice monitor is in a position to regularly observe and assess Respondent’s medical practice and
conduct. Respondent shall cause the practice monitor to report within 24 hours any suspected
impairment, inappropriate behavior, questionable medical practice or possible misconduct to OPMC.
The practice monitor shall submit quarterly written reports to the Director of OPMC, regarding
Respondent’s practice, including, but not limited to procedures for billing and making payments
related to the medical practice. These narrative reports shall address all aspects of Respondent’s
clinical practice including, but not limited to, the evaluation and treatment of patients, general
demeanor, and other such on-duty conduct as the practice monitor deems appropriate to report under
the circumstances of this case.

Respondent shall maintain complete and legible medical records that accurately reflect the evaluation
and treatment of patients, and contain all information required by State rules and regulations.
Respondent shall comply with these Terms of Probation, and shall bear all associated compliance

costs. Upon receiving evidence of noncompliance with or a violation of these terms, the Director of
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OPMC and/or the Board for Professional Medical Conduct may initiate a violation of probation
proceeding, and/or any other proceeding authorized by law, against the Respondent.
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